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Tender Response Pack (Open Framework)- Part B
[bookmark: _Hlk87617093]THE PROVISION OF POST-ADOPTION THERAPY SERVICES FOR ADOPT THAMES VALLEY
I-0003


You must read the Invitation to Tender and Conditions of Contract before completing this pack.

Tenderers must answer all questions in this document





SECTION A	SERVICE QUESTIONS
Applicants may register an interest in any or all of the categories listed and should indicate therapies being applied for in the table below.
 
	Category 1: Psychotherapy 
	Please mark with ‘X’ the types being applied for. 

	EDMR 
	 

	DDP 
	 

	Attachment 
	 

	Solution Focussed brief therapy 
	 

	Sensory Integration Processing Therapy/ Therapeutic Listening Programme 
	 

	Cognitive Behavioural Therapy (CBT) for the child 
	 

	Brain mapping 
	 

	Systemic Family Therapy 
	 

	Video Interaction Guidance 
	 

	Mindfulness-Based Cognitive Therapy (MBCT) 
	 

	Multisystemic Therapy (MST) 
	 

	Dialectical therapy (branch of CBT) 
	 

	RAMP (Reducing Anxiety Management Plan) 
	 

	MindfulYoga Course 
	 

	Neuro integration System Therapy (NIS)  
	 

	Educational Psychotherapy 
	 

	Psychotherapy for the child 
	 

	Therapeutic Life Story Work 
	 

	Therapeutic Parenting 
	 
 

	NVR 
	 

	Specialist Multidisciplinary Assessment  
	 

	Therapeutic short breaks  
	 

	Family therapy  
	 

	Internal families system therapy  
	 

	Neuro-integration systems therapy (NIS) 
	 

	Psychoanalytical therapy  
	 

	Reducing anxiety management plan (RAMP) 
	 

	Sensory integration processing therapy or sensory integration listening program  
	 

	Multisystemic family therapy  
	 

	Psychodynamic therapy    
	 

	Tuition in emotional literacy 
 
	 


 
 
	Category 2: Creative Therapies 
	Please mark with ‘X’ the types being applied for. 

	Play 
	 

	Art 
	 

	Music 
	 

	Drama 
	 

	Video Interaction Guidance 
	 

	Theraplay 
	 

	Lego therapy 
	 

	Dance Movement Therapy 
	 

	MIM – Marschak Interaction Method (common theraplay) 
	 

	MindfulYoga Course 
	 

	Specialist assessment 
	 

	Therapeutic Life Story Work 
	 

	Therapeutic Parenting 
	 

	NVR 
	 

	Creative Therapies involving the child and adults (Please specify) 
	 

	Creative physical therapies- other (please specify) 
	 

	Filial therapy  
	 

	Video feedback intervention to promote positive parenting  and sensitive discipline  
	 

	Koru project 
	 


 





OUTCOMES AND EXPERIENCE (QUALITY SCORING)

(Please give relevant and recent examples to the additional questions below. Please mark as N/A if you do not have experience in this area and be as specific as possible.)  
 
	Question No. 
	Outcomes and Experience 
	Word count and % of total score 

	1 
	Is your therapy experience in children and young people? Please give details  
 
Please also detail if you also work with parents or if you work with parents exclusively?
 
	Word count 1000 maximum / Weighting 30%   

	Detail your experience  - For  Assessment . Expand box as required 
 
 

	 

	Question No. 
	Outcomes and Experience 
	Word count and % of total score 

	2 
	Do you have experience of working with adopted children? Please give details. 
 
	Word count 1000 maximum / Weighting 30%







   

	Detail your experience  - For  Assessment . Expand box as required 

 

	 

	Question No. 
	Outcomes and Experience 
	Word count and % of total score 

	3 
	Please give examples of effective therapeutic support you delivered including outcomes achieved. 
 
Do you specialise in a particular therapy or approach?  
 
Please share any examples of an effective way of providing therapy that you have developed or used? 
 
 
	Word count 1000 maximum / Weighting 30%   

	Detail your experience  - For  Assessment . Expand box as required 
 
 

	Question No. 
	Outcomes and Experience 
	Word count and % of total score 

	4 
	Have you had experience in SEND and Inclusion? If so, please give details and an example of recent practice? 
	Word count 1000 maximum / Weighting  
10%   





 

	Detail your experience  - For  Assessment . Expand box as required 
 
 

	 OUTCOMES AND EXPERIENCE (INFORMATION ONLY)

 
 

	Question No. 
	Outcomes and Experience 
	Word count and % of total score 

	5 
	If registered with Ofsted please state registration number and date. 
Please provide details of any other registered body and state registration number and date. 
 








	N/A 

	For Information Only 
 



 
	Question No. 
	Outcomes and Experience 
	Word count and % of total score 

	6 
	Are you able to provide a suitable venue for the therapies, or do you need to hire one? (If so, the hire costs will need to be included in you pricing submission document) 





 
	N/A 

	For Information Only 
 




SECTION B	PRICING

The Open Framework will be for Therapy support services in the following Categories:

1 – Psychotherapy
2 – Creative Therapies


Remuneration rates 

Please provide your *daily rate for the services applied for in the table below. Please note that most of the work assignments will be subject to mini-competitions with ‘call-off contracts being issued to the successful provider in accordance with the call off process. Providers will be able to adjust their rates for mini-competition, with the daily rate being used for direct awards

Your rates are to be inclusive of all expenses including mileage unless agreed otherwise. This rate will only apply from the time the assignment commences at the setting. No additional costs will be accepted that are over and above the rate stipulated. 


Payments will be made against a verified timesheet

*Daily rate pricing is broken down per hour for therapy, per hour for report writing and mileage (not including travel time).

	[bookmark: RANGE!B3]Category1: Psychotherapy 
	Daily Rate=£ Per Hour + Mileage

	
	Therapy/hr
	Report Writing/hr
	Mileage
	Total

	EDMR 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	DDP 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Attachment 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Solution Focussed brief therapy 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Sensory Integration Processing Therapy/ Therapeutic Listening Programme 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Cognitive Behavioural Therapy (CBT) for the child 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Brain mapping 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Systemic Family Therapy 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Video Interaction Guidance 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Mindfulness-Based Cognitive Therapy (MBCT) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Multisystemic Therapy (MST) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Dialectical therapy (branch of CBT) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	RAMP (Reducing Anxiety Management Plan) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	MindfulYoga Course 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Neuro integration System Therapy (NIS)  
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Educational Psychotherapy 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Psychotherapy for the child 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Therapeutic Life Story Work 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Therapeutic Parenting 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	NVR 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Specialist Multidisciplinary Assessment  
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Therapeutic short breaks  
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Family therapy  
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Internal families system therapy  
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Neuro-integration systems therapy (NIS) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Psychoanalytical therapy  
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Reducing anxiety management plan (RAMP) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Sensory integration processing therapy or sensory integration listening program  
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Multisystemic family therapy  
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Psychodynamic therapy    
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Tuition in emotional literacy 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Category 2: Creative Therapies 
	Daily Rate

	
	Therapy/hr
	Report Writing/hr
	Mileage
	Total

	Play 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Art 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Music 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Drama 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Video Interaction Guidance 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Theraplay 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Lego therapy 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Dance Movement Therapy 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	MIM – Marschak Interaction Method (common theraplay) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	MindfulYoga Course 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Specialist assessment 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Therapeutic Life Story Work 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Therapeutic Parenting 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	NVR 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Creative Therapies involving the child and adults (Please specify) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Creative physical therapies- other (please specify) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Filial therapy  
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Video feedback intervention to promote positive parenting  and sensitive discipline  
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Koru project 
	 
	 
	 
	 





SECTION C  SAFEGUARDING
 
1. Sole Traders, Partnerships & Charitable Organisations must complete the safeguarding document titled – Safeguarding Contract Checklist (below).  
 

[bookmark: _MON_1716147162] 	
2. Public & Private Limited Companies must complete the safeguarding document titled – Section 11 Safeguarding Audit Template (below). 
 










TENDERER CHECKLIST	& PRECONTRACT CHECKLIST
Tenderers should ensure that they have completed the following sections before returning their ITT responses:

	
SECTION HEADING

	
COMPLETED?

	Part B Section A Service Questions
	☐
	Part B Section B Pricing
	☐
	Part B Section C Safeguarding
	☐


It is important that all sections are completed as failure to do so may result in your ITT response being deemed non-compliant and not further considered by the Council.

Tenderers who do not wish to provide a response to this ITT are requested to advise the Council’s Representative as soon as possible.


PRE-CONTRACT CHECKLIST 

Following evaluation, the following documents will be required by the Council from the Tenderer(s) who has the Most Economic Advantageous Tender. These documents must be checked prior to contract and the Council is providing this list so Tenderers can be prepared.  

	 
SECTION 
	 
SECTION HEADING 
 

	8.1 
	Insurance Certificates 

	8.2 
	Equality & Diversity Policy 

	8.3 
	Safeguarding Policy 

	8.4 
	Health & Safety Policy 

	9.1
	Other service specific questions

	Appendix 4 
	GDPR Supplier Questionnaire 


 
Page Break 
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Safeguarding Contract Checklist
Annual Safeguarding Self-Assessment and Contract Audit Checklist

 

To be used instead of the full Safeguarding Self-Assessment Tool with:



· Sole Traders

· Consultants

· Organisations that employ staff but where there is limited or no contact with children and young people as part of their Contract with OCC



1. Please confirm the following in the table below by ticking the appropriate box and adding any additional comments where needed.  As part of your Contract with OCC:



		

		Question

		Yes

		No

		Comments



		1.

		Are you a sole trader or consultant that does not employ any staff?

		

		

		



		1A.

		Do you have any contact with children, young people, vulnerable adults or adults at risk?

		

		

		



		1B.

		Do you employ any staff (including paid and volunteers) who may have contact with children, young people, vulnerable adults or adults at risk?

		

		

		



		1C.

		Does your Contract with OCC have any specific requirements around safeguarding requirements?

		

		

		







Sole Traders / Consultants that do not employ staff – If you have answered “Yes” to Questions 1A or 1C, then please complete the following Tables A & C. Please provide any evidence requested and sign and date the end of this document.



Organizations that employ staff with limited or no contact with children, young people, vulnerable adults or adults at risk– If you have answered “Yes” to either Questions 1A, 1B or 1C, please complete the following Table B & C. Please provide any evidence requested and sign and date the end of this document.



Table A – For completion by Sole Traders / Consultants that do not employ any staff



		

		Questions

		Yes

		No

		Comments



		

		Safer Recruitment

		

		

		



		1.

		I can confirm that I have a valid enhanced DBS check which has been updated within the last 3 years – Please provide details of the date this was completed, DBS number and the Organization that verified your identity in the comments section opposite

		

		

		



		2.

		I am registered with the DBS update service

		

		

		



		

		Safeguarding Training

		

		

		



		3.

		I have received the appropriate level of Safeguarding Training within the last two years – Please check training requirements on http://training.oscb.org.uk/. Please also provide a copy of the certificate 

		

		

		



		

		Safeguarding Reporting

		

		

		



		4.

		I am aware of the safeguarding reporting requirements in Oxfordshire http://oxfordshirescb.proceduresonline.com/

and can confirm that I have read and understand the attached Immediate Concerns about a Child document – Please return the signed declaration

		

		

		



		

		Insurances

		

		

		



		5.

		I have attached copies of all insurance certificates in relation to my Contract with OCC

		

		

		



























Table B – For completion by Organizations that employ staff that have limited or no contact with children, young people, vulnerable adults or adults at risk



The questions below refer to all staff employed in connection with the delivery of your Contract on behalf of Oxfordshire County Council. This includes permanent, voluntary, casual and agency staff.



		

		Questions

		Yes

		No

		Comments



		

		Policies

		

		

		



		1.

		I / we can confirm that we have a Safeguarding Policy in place that reflects the Oxfordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board requirements and is reviewed at least annually http://oxfordshirescb.proceduresonline.com/

		

		

		



		2.

		I / we can confirm that we have an up to date Whistleblowing and Complaints Policy in place 

		

		

		



		

		Safer Recruitment

		

		

		



		3.

		I / we can confirm that our Recruitment & Selection Policy is in line with “Safer Recruitment” guidance and that this is applied at all times in the recruitment of our staff *

		

		

		



		4.

		I / we can evidence that DBS checks in line with the vetting and barring legislation, are undertaken on all staff who have contact with children, young people, vulnerable adults or adults at risk 

		

		

		



		5.

		I / we confirm that we shall inform the Council’s contact of any DBS disclosures within 24 hours of them becoming know

		

		

		



		6.

		I / we understand that no staff member with DBS Disclosures, should begin work with a child or young person or family member until the Council’s Contact has been notified and approval confirmed by Oxfordshire County Council

		

		

		



		

		Training

		

		

		



		7.

		I / we confirm that all staff have undertaken the appropriate Oxfordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board (or equivalent) Safeguarding training within the past 2 years ** http://training.oscb.org.uk/





		

		

		



		

		Safeguarding Reporting

		

		

		



		8.

		I / we can confirm that all staff are aware of the Safeguarding Reporting requirements in Oxfordshire http://oxfordshirescb.proceduresonline.com/

and that a copy of the attached “Immediate Concerns About a Child” has been shared with all staff – Please return the signed declaration

		

		

		



		

		Insurances

		

		

		



		9.

		I / we have attached copies of all insurance certificates in relation to our Contract with OCC

		

		

		







*Safer Recruitment Guidelines include ensuring:



· Identity has been confirmed using photo ID 

· Name, Address and DOB have been verified

· Validity of Qualification Certificates has been checked  

· Right to Work in the UK / Overseas checks have been verified (where applicable) 

· At least 2 references have been received and followed up 

· Any gaps in employment history have been checked and verified 



** Training: Please check training requirements and courses available at http://training.oscb.org.uk/



TABLE C – Please complete the information below so that we can ensure our contact details are correct



		Name of Lead Contact for your Contract with OCC

		Address details

		Telephone Number

		E-mail address

		Do you have a Business Continuity Plan in Place? 

Yes / No

		When was this last reviewed



		



		

		

		

		

		















Name of Sole Trader / Consultant / Organisation……………………………………………………………………………………………………



Name of person completing this checklist…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….



Job title of person completing this checklist………………………………………………………………………………………………………….



Signature of person completing……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….



Date…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
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Section 11 Safeguarding - Audit Template
[image: image1.png]O S [e;

Oxfordshire Safeguarding Children Board










Section 11 Audit Template


Contents


1. Introduction





page 2

2. Guidance Notes




page 3


3. Safeguarding questionnaire for staff 

page 7


4. Section 11 Self-Assessment Tool


page 8 

Section 11 Safeguarding self-assessment

1. Introduction:


This is the safeguarding self-assessment for 2015.  

Template


The template is the same as last year with a few extra questions that the OSCB thinks are important in the light of recent audit work and case reviews. 

RAG rating


A decision has been made to maintain the RAG rating. There will be two ratings – one by the agency and one following the peer review and evaluation.  


· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met). You must provide an example to achieve blue – no example, no blue. Following on from the audit in 2013 the OSCB has specified what should be provided in particular to achieve this rating.

· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)

· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)

· Red – most points need work  (25% met)

Questionnaire

A questionnaire for frontline staff was based on the template used by Oxford University Hospitals.  The suggestion is that this is used with a small number of staff and that the agency indicates both the number/percentage of staff who participate. The OSCB proposes that smaller organisations provide a minimum return of ten and larger organisations aim for a minimum return of 100 colleagues.  The agency is asked to summarise the findings from their questionnaires rather than submit the individual responses from members of staff.

Section 11 guidance notes


What is Section 11?

Safeguarding children is everyone’s responsibility.  Section 11 of the Children Act places a statutory duty on key organisations to make arrangements to ensure that in discharging their functions they have regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.


 


It is important to remember that Section 11 does not give agencies any new functions, nor does it over-ride their existing functions.  Instead it requires you to carry out your existing functions in a way that takes into account the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. 


 


 


Who does Section 11 apply to?

Section 11 compliance is a mandatory requirement for key organisations involved with children and young people, including:


 


· local authorities and district councils that provide children’s and other types of services, including children’s and adult social care services, public health, housing, sport, culture and leisure services, licensing authorities and youth services;


· NHS organisations, including the NHS Commissioning Board and clinical commissioning groups, NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts;


· the police, including police and crime commissioners and the chief officer of each police force in England and the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime in London; 


· the British Transport Police;


· the Probation Service;


· Governors/ Directors of Prisons and Young Offender Institutions;


· Directors of Secure Training Centres; and


· Youth Offending Teams/ Services.


 

Guidance notes to support the completion of the S11 self-assessment tool


This assessment tool has been designed to provide agencies with the opportunity to highlight areas of strength and to identify areas for development in respect of their section 11 duties and responsibilities.  This will assist the OSCB in identifying where to target support in order to drive safeguarding standards upwards.   


In completing the assessment tool please note:

· If an agency decides that a particular strand within the assessment tool is not applicable the agency must set out why the standard is not relevant


· When referring to children, the standard includes all children and young people aged 0 to 18 years 


· Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children is defined within Working Together 2013 as:


· Protecting children from maltreatment


· Preventing impairment of children’s health or development


· Ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe effective


· Taking action to enable all children to have the best outcomes


This tool covers the continuum of safeguarding need from early safeguarding provision to statutory child protection processes.


Evidencing the standards


When providing evidence to support compliance with standards you must be assured that statements made within the completed tool are correct and based on accessible evidence.  


This self-assessment tool does not require agencies to submit documentation as evidence; however evidence may be subsequently requested. 


The self-assessment must demonstrate the impact of policies and practice on identifiable improved outcomes for children young people and families for which evidence is available.


STANDARD 1 – senior management commitment to the importance of safeguarding and promoting children’s welfare

Job descriptions clearly set out the expectations placed on the named person.


Corporate / business plans highlight the improved outcomes expected as a result of the plan so that measured improvements in safeguarding, including child protection, are easily identifiable.


Ofsted and CQC guidance should  be used where applicable throughout- www.ofsted.gov.uk ; www.cqc.org.uk. Where voluntary services are contributing to the process safe network standards are to be used www.safernetwork.org.uk


To include reference to Health and Wellbeing Boards and Children’s Partnerships where applicable.  


STANDARD 2 – A clear statement of the agency’s responsibility towards children is available to all staff

How do you know that your staff are aware of their safeguarding responsibilities eg how many staff are trained and level of training, induction training, professional development that highlights safeguarding knowledge, appraisals etc.  


Provide evidence of complaints made regarding safeguarding issues including compliance with procedures.  Include how the agency used complaints to improve service outcomes through organisational learning.  You may include learning from serious case reviews, single and multi-agency audits etc


Evidence how your agency ensures that any contracted/commissioned agency has the required level of safeguarding knowledge, including those who provide locum services.  Evidence how you monitor contractual safeguarding compliance matched to outcomes including, for the voluntary sector, safe network standards.

Agencies need to ensure that they have identified where there are 'hidden issues’, which would cover any form of abuse (such as gang activity, child sexual exploitation, missing children, faith-based child abuse) that your agency is aware of but not addressing.


STANDARD 3 – A clear line of accountability within the organisation for work on safeguarding and promoting welfare

Even if safeguarding is not your core business, agencies must evidence the accountability structure in place to ensure that children and young people are safeguarded and their welfare promoted, for example, through Think family/ hidden harm / safe networks / CQC standards/ Ofsted etc


STANDARD 4 – Service development takes into account the need to safeguard and promote welfare and is informed, where appropriate, by the views of children & families

Some suggestions for evidence within this section may include:


Equality impact assessments that include a specific area on safeguarding 


How you have utilised young people forums to inform strategic planning or decision making 


The methods that have been used to ensure the diverse needs of children are identified and addressed. 


Identify the outcomes your agency prioritised and evidence how these have been progressed towards achievement. 


STANDARD 5 – Training on safeguarding & promoting the welfare of children for all staff working with or, depending on the agency’s primary functions, in contact with children & families

Agencies must consider single and multi-agency training undertaken: You may have discussed training elsewhere, this can be cross referenced. 

A database for recording attendance at training can be in a number of formats including excel spreadsheet / word / electronic

STANDARD 6 – Safer recruitment procedures including vetting procedures and those for managing allegations are in place

How do you promote the role of the LADO within your agency (intranet / internet / websites / Team Meetings etc)? What evidence do you have to demonstrate that processes are embedded within your organisation and referrals made whenever an allegation is made.


Evidence could include referrals made to the Independent Safeguarding Authority (ISA) that they have been fully completed, not stopped due to staff resignation / checks made including DBS and professional registration.


STANDARD 7 - Effective inter-agency working to safeguard & promote the welfare of children

How do you utilise data and provide examples.  For example provide an example of how you have acted on your data to improve early intervention provision.  


Where applicable evidence how your organisation has used interagency protocols.


Show how you have worked effectively with LSCB partners to successfully deliver Care plans and appropriately support any s47 investigation.


Evidence to include where agencies are sharing intelligence to ensure early help is sought where necessary. Agencies need to have a clear understanding of what's available for children and young people who might require help, but don't meet the threshold for children's social care. 


Evidence to include how you monitor agency attendance at child protection conferences and core groups and ensure effective contribution to child in need and looked after children planning


Further examples could include attendance at multi agency meetings/ evidence of how non-attendance at key meeting is addressed within your agency/ Agency progression of child in need plans / team around the child plans etc / dispute escalation procedures in place for resolving disagreement internally and externally on case issues


STANDARD 8 – Effective information sharing

If information sharing arrangements are effective it will include secure transfer of information such as secure email, password protection etc.  


Effective and appropriate information sharing could be identified through increased cases of early identification of need. 


SECTION 11 Audit


Questionnaire for front line staff


This year we are introducing the below questionnaire. We suggest that you use it with a small number of staff letting the OSCB know how many and what percentage that constitutes.  Could you provide a summary of the findings from your agency rather than the individual responses.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------


As part of our safeguarding self-assessment tool we are asking a sample of front line staff to complete this short questionnaire which will help us assess the effectiveness of our strategic arrangements for safeguarding children.


		Topic

		Item

		Comment / evidence






		1. Training

		When did you last have Safeguarding Children Training and how have you developed your practice to incorporate your revised or new safeguarding knowledge? 

		



		2. Knowledge

		Three part question:


What would you do if you had a safeguarding concern about a child?

What procedures would you use and where would you find them?

		



		3. Action

		How would you respond to a safeguarding allegation made against another member of staff?

		



		4. Action

		Three part question:


When did you last look at the online procedures, what for and was it useful?

		



		5. Support

		Do you know the name of your organisation’s lead officer for safeguarding? 


Have you their contact details? 

		



		6. Documentation

		Two part question:


What documentation would you use to support a safeguarding referral?


What tools might you use? 

		



		Post title of interviewee:  

		



		Post title of interviewer:  

		



		Any agreed actions:




		(what / when / who)



		Date signed off:

		





Section 11 self-assessment tool


This is a self-assessment tool that aims to assess the effectiveness of the arrangements for safeguarding children at a strategic level. Each agency or organisation must ensure that any statements made within the tool are backed by evidence. Wherever possible, evidence of impact on improving outcomes for children should be identified.


The tool assesses each organisation against 8 standards based on the requirements of Section 11 of the Children’s Act 2004. Throughout the self-assessment, consideration must be given to evidencing improved outcomes for children young people and their families as a result of the arrangements.


		This audit was completed by:



		Name:












		Position:



		Signed:



		Date:





STANDARD 1 – Senior management have commitment to the importance of safeguarding and promoting children’s welfare


		How effective is the commitment of senior management to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children within your agency / organisation?



		Compliance checklist – policies & procedures, organisational arrangements

		Describe / identify how your organisation meets this standard.



		There is a named person at senior level  responsible for safeguarding and championing role clearly in job description and that they understand and undertake their responsibilities  


Strategies and plans include reference to safeguarding and are clear about responsibilities 

· the impact of our services

· how we decide to work with one family and not another


· The quality of our work


· Whether the timing of our interventions are appropriate for the child's safety

Safeguarding activity is routinely monitored within the organisation, issues are identified at the appropriate level and resources are put in place to resolve them


Senior managers demonstrate good understanding of safeguarding and to ensure that practice continues to improve

Please check all the above and say what actions you are taking if any of them are not happening.



		



		

		How do you know? – include evidence of any improved outcomes directly linked to safeguarding and the promotion of children’s welfare to obtain a blue rating



		

		



		On the basis of the evidence you have provided how would you RAG rate your agency?




		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		Are any actions required to improve effectiveness?

		How will you do this? 

		Who will lead?

		Timescale?



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		OSCB  RAG rated assessment of the evidence: 



		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		OSCB commentary:


 

		





STANDARD 2 – There is a clear statement of the agency’s responsibility towards children and this is available to all staff


		How clearly are the agency’s responsibilities towards children communicated to all staff?



		Compliance checklist – policies & procedures, organisational arrangements

		Describe / identify how your organisation meets this standard.



		All staff are aware of safeguarding policies and procedures within our organisation and where to find multi-agency procedures

Staff feel able to raise concerns


Staff encourage children, young people and carers to raise concerns or make complaints if appropriate

Effective complaints systems are in place, in line with current statutory guidance, for children, staff & other people to make complaints 

Child friendly complaints information is used

Recommendations / outcomes on practice are communicated to staff 

Where relevant to your organisation, commissioning arrangements include monitoring of section 11 responsibilities 


Please check all the above and say what actions you are taking if any of them are not happening.




		



		

		How do you know? – include evidence of improved outcomes to obtain a blue rating



		

		





		On the basis of the evidence you have provided how would you RAG rate your agency?




		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		Are any actions required to improve effectiveness?

		How will you do this? 

		Who will lead?

		Timescale?



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		OSCB  RAG rated assessment of the evidence: 



		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		OSCB commentary:


 

		





STANDARD 3 – There is a clear line of accountability within the organisation for work on safeguarding and promoting welfare

		How clear is the line of accountability within the organisation for work on safeguarding & promoting welfare?



		Compliance checklist – policies & procedures, organisational arrangements

		Describe / identify how your organisation meets this standard.



		A named person has ultimate accountability for safeguarding arrangements


There are clear lines of accountability from staff through organisation to the named person & flow chart of accountability is displayed and available to staff  


Anyone who comes into contact with children or their families has their responsibility towards children’s welfare explicitly stated in job description and this is reviewed in appraisals and 1 to 1s. 


Staff are aware who has overall responsibility for their agency contribution, and are clear of their own responsibilities.


Staff receive adequate reflective supervision and support.


Staff workloads are manageable


Staff are able to spend enough time with children and young people (where appropriate)

Individual interventions have improved the safety and welfare of children (where appropriate)

Please check all the above and say what actions you are taking if any of them are not happening.




		



		

		How do you know? – include evidence of improved outcomes to obtain a blue rating



		

		



		On the basis of the evidence you have provided how would you RAG rate your agency?




		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		Are any actions required to improve effectiveness?

		How will you do this? 

		Who will lead?

		Timescale?



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		OSCB  RAG rated assessment of the evidence: 



		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		OSCB commentary:


 

		





STANDARD 4 – Service development takes into account the need to safeguard and promote welfare and is informed, where appropriate, by the views of children & families


		How effectively does service development take into account need to safeguard? How is it effectively informed by views of children & families? How can you demonstrate improved outcomes?



		Compliance checklist – policies & procedures, organisational arrangements

		Describe / identify how your organisation meets this standard.



		We hear from children, parents and/or carers about:

· Feeling safe and being listened to


· Working with professionals


· Whether the right support was provided at the right time

· Experience of re-referrals and being passed from one agency to another (where appropriate)

· Their views on the child protection plan (if they have one) 

We check that:


Service development has taken into account the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children


Children & their families are actively involved in design, development & delivery of services & their involvement is demonstrated and what happens if it is not

All practical information is made available and different methods of communication are available to children to express their views and hear what is available for them

Children & young people are involved in the development of equal opportunity policies 

There is a responsive process in place to act on identified unmet need and feed in to business planning and identify where gaps are met elsewhere

Please check all the above and say what actions you are taking if any of them are not happening.




		



		

		How do you know? – include evidence of improved outcomes 

To obtain a blue rating you need to provide evidence:

1. how you ensure service development takes account of safeguarding.


2. how commissioning arrangements ensure safeguarding is clearly defined in regards to your safeguarding duties. This needs to include how contract monitoring will address any safeguarding issues or areas for development. (We know that this issue is emerging through our case review quality assurance work)








		On the basis of the evidence you have provided how would you RAG rate your agency?




		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		Are any actions required to improve effectiveness?

		How will you do this? 

		Who will lead?

		Timescale?



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		OSCB  RAG rated assessment of the evidence: 



		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		OSCB commentary:


 

		





STANDARD 5 – There is effective training on safeguarding & promoting the welfare of children for all staff working with or, depending on the agency’s primary functions, in contact with children & families


		How effective is training on safeguarding & promoting welfare of children for all staff & volunteers working with or in contact with children & their families? Can you demonstrate improved outcomes as a result?



		Compliance checklist – policies & procedures, organisational arrangements

		Describe / identify how your organisation meets this standard.



		We have the right professionals 


working with children and families

A clear induction process is in place for all staff, trustees and volunteers  that addresses safeguarding & is delivered in a timely way


All staff and volunteers  are appropriately trained and supported

We can evidence safeguarding training undertaken by staff through a database 

We contribute trainers and / or resources to the OSCB multi-agency safeguarding training programme


Training enhances staff awareness of diversity issues  in relation to safeguarding

We can demonstrate impact of training on practice from having asked staff ( and volunteers where appropriate)at supervision how their practice has changed through their safeguarding training

Please check all the above and say what actions you are taking if any of them are 


not happening.




		



		

		How do you know? – Include evidence of improved outcomes

To obtain a blue rating…

1. Your agency training plan should show that all levels of the organisation have a clear plan for safeguarding training (where appropriate).


2. You should tell us the qualifications of your trainers


3. You should tell us how many of the appropriate colleagues are up to date with their training (no / %)

4. You should tell us how you assess the impact of training (internal and external)





		

		





		On the basis of the evidence you have provided how would you RAG rate your agency?




		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		Are any actions required to improve effectiveness?

		How will you do this? 

		Who will lead?

		Timescale?



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		OSCB  RAG rated assessment of the evidence: 



		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		OSCB commentary:


 

		





STANDARD 6 – Safer recruitment procedures including vetting procedures and those for managing allegations are in place


		How robust are organisation’s recruitment, vetting and managing allegations procedures?



		Compliance checklist – policies & procedures, organisational arrangements

		Describe / identify how your organisation meets this standard.



		Safer recruitment & selection procedures are in place in line with statutory guidance


Agencies commissioned to provide services have safer recruitment in place


Safer recruitment training is in 


place for managers involved in 


recruitment


We have procedures for managing allegations


A senior manager has been identified for the managing allegations process & knows who the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) is,  when to contact them and acts upon guidance from the LADO appropriately

Support is available for staff who are subject to allegations

Audit processes are in place to monitor safer recruitment & managing allegations


Please check all the above and say what actions you are taking if any of them are not happening.




		



		

		How do you know? – include evidence of improved outcomes to obtain a blue rating



		

		





		On the basis of the evidence you have provided how would you RAG rate your agency?




		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		Are any actions required to improve effectiveness?

		How will you do this? 

		Who will lead?

		Timescale?



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		OSCB  RAG rated assessment of the evidence: 



		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		OSCB commentary:


 

		





STANDARD 7 – There is effective inter-agency working to safeguard & promote the welfare of children


		How effective is inter-agency working by your organisation? How do you demonstrate improved outcomes as a result?



		Compliance checklist – policies & procedures, organisational arrangements

		Describe / identify how your organisation meets this standard.



		We listen to all our staff to make sure we understand where a child might be at risk of abuse or neglect. 

We listen to and accept feedback from staff in other agencies where there are concerns a child might be at risk of abuse or neglect


We make practitioners aware of the multi-agency tools for identifying, assessing and recording safeguarding concerns for example:


· The Guide to Good multi-agency working (the local assessment protocol)


· Threshold of needs matrix


· The neglect tool


· Parental substance misuse tool


· The child sexual exploitation screening tool


We:


· Show them where to find the tools on our / the OSCB website

· Check that they use them, for example, through supervision 

We make practitioners aware of the multi-agency procedures by:


· Directing them via a link from our own intranet pages  

· Letting them know when the procedures  are updated


We ensure effective contribution to Section 47 investigations and Child Protection Plans by participating in  multi-agency meetings  ensuring that non-attendance addressed


Children & their families are consulted on regarding the effectiveness of inter-agency working.  

Please check all the above and say what actions you are taking if any of them are not happening.




		



		

		How do you know? – To obtain a blue rating you should: 

1. Show that you have reviewed internal guidance for working with / involvement with other departments/agencies.


2. Show that you have reviewed induction information to ensure working with partners is clearly stated.


3. Show that you have a central recording system for allegations, referrals or other concerns to enable internal monitoring and assist with external scrutiny (such as multi-agency case reviews and audits).


4. Show that you have reviewed contracted services arrangements to ensure working together to safeguard children is embedded as part of their way of working






		

		





		On the basis of the evidence you have provided how would you RAG rate your agency?




		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		Are any actions required to improve effectiveness?

		How will you do this? 

		Who will lead?

		Timescale?



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		OSCB  RAG rated assessment of the evidence: 



		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		OSCB commentary:


 

		





STANDARD 8 – There is effective Information Sharing


		How effective are the organisations arrangements for information sharing governance?



		Compliance checklist – policies & procedures, organisational arrangements

		Describe / identify how your organisation meets this standard.



		We have a clear policy on appropriate information sharing to ensure children are safeguarded and their welfare promoted and that this policy is complied with


We can evidence how this impacts on outcomes for children


Training addresses need for effective information sharing and encourages staff to use professional judgement


Staff know where to seek advice on information sharing & have confidence in their professional judgement


Please check all the above and say what actions you are taking if any of them are not happening.




		



		

		How do you know? – to obtain a blue rating you should have links to the  information sharing protocol on the OSCB website where appropriate within your organisation and appropriate agreements in place where this protocol is too strategic for your purposes



		

		





		On the basis of the evidence you have provided how would you RAG rate your agency?




		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		Are any actions required to improve effectiveness?

		How will you do this? 

		Who will lead?

		Timescale?



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		OSCB  RAG rated assessment of the evidence: 



		· Blue – all points met and all points evidenced with examples of best practice to share with others (100% met)


· Green – all points met and most points evidenced (75% met)


· Amber – some points met but not much evidence would appreciate receiving examples of good practice (50% met)


· Red – most points need work  (25% met)



		OSCB commentary:


 

		







Section 11 guidance notes


What is Section 11?

Safeguarding children is everyone’s responsibility.  Section 11 of the Children Act places a statutory duty on key organisations to make arrangements to ensure that in discharging their functions they have regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.


 


It is important to remember that Section 11 does not give agencies any new functions, nor does it over-ride their existing functions.  Instead it requires you to carry out your existing functions in a way that takes into account the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. 


 


 


Who does Section 11 apply to?

Section 11 compliance is a mandatory requirement for key organisations involved with children and young people, including:


 


· local authorities and district councils that provide children’s and other types of services, including children’s and adult social care services, public health, housing, sport, culture and leisure services, licensing authorities and youth services;


· NHS organisations, including the NHS Commissioning Board and clinical commissioning groups, NHS Trusts and NHS Foundation Trusts;


· the police, including police and crime commissioners and the chief officer of each police force in England and the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime in London; 


· the British Transport Police;


· the Probation Service;


· Governors/ Directors of Prisons and Young Offender Institutions;


· Directors of Secure Training Centres; and


· Youth Offending Teams/ Services.


 

Guidance notes to support the completion of the S11 self-assessment tool


This assessment tool has been designed to provide agencies with the opportunity to highlight areas of strength and to identify areas for development in respect of their section 11 duties and responsibilities.  This will assist the OSCB in identifying where to target support in order to drive safeguarding standards upwards.   


In completing the assessment tool please note:

· If an agency decides that a particular strand within the assessment tool is not applicable the agency must set out why the standard is not relevant


· When referring to children, the standard includes all children and young people aged 0 to 18 years 


· Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children is defined within Working Together 2013 as:


· Protecting children from maltreatment


· Preventing impairment of children’s health or development


· Ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe effective


· Taking action to enable all children to have the best outcomes


This tool covers the continuum of safeguarding need from early safeguarding provision to statutory child protection processes.


Evidencing the standards


When providing evidence to support compliance with standards you must be assured that statements made within the completed tool are correct and based on accessible evidence.  


This self-assessment tool does not require agencies to submit documentation as evidence; however evidence may be subsequently requested. 


The self-assessment must demonstrate the impact of policies and practice on identifiable improved outcomes for children young people and families for which evidence is available.


STANDARD 1 – senior management commitment to the importance of safeguarding and promoting children’s welfare

Job descriptions clearly set out the expectations placed on the named person.


Corporate / business plans highlight the improved outcomes expected as a result of the plan so that measured improvements in safeguarding, including child protection, are easily identifiable.


Ofsted and CQC guidance should  be used where applicable throughout- www.ofsted.gov.uk ; www.cqc.org.uk. Where voluntary services are contributing to the process safe network standards are to be used www.safernetwork.org.uk


To include reference to Health and Wellbeing Boards and Children’s Partnerships where applicable.  


STANDARD 2 – A clear statement of the agency’s responsibility towards children is available to all staff

How do you know that your staff are aware of their safeguarding responsibilities eg how many staff are trained and level of training, induction training, professional development that highlights safeguarding knowledge, appraisals etc.  


Provide evidence of complaints made regarding safeguarding issues including compliance with procedures.  Include how the agency used complaints to improve service outcomes through organisational learning.  You may include learning from serious case reviews, single and multi agency audits etc


Evidence how your agency ensures that any contracted/commissioned agency has the required level of safeguarding knowledge, including those who provide locum services.  Evidence how you monitor contractual safeguarding compliance matched to outcomes including, for the voluntary sector, safe network standards.

Agencies need to ensure that they have identified where there are 'hidden issues’, which would cover any form of abuse (such as gang activity, child sexual exploitation, missing children, faith-based child abuse) that your agency is aware of but not addressing.


STANDARD 3 – A clear line of accountability within the organisation for work on safeguarding and promoting welfare

Even if safeguarding is not your core business, agencies must evidence the accountability structure in place to ensure that children and young people are safeguarded and their welfare promoted, for example, through Think family/ hidden harm / safe networks / CQC standards/ Ofsted etc


STANDARD 4 – Service development takes into account the need to safeguard and promote welfare and is informed, where appropriate, by the views of children & families

Some suggestions for evidence within this section may include:


Equality impact assessments that include a specific area on safeguarding 


How you have utilised young people forums to inform strategic planning or decision making 


The methods that have been used to ensure the diverse needs of children are identified and addressed. 


Identify the outcomes your agency prioritised and evidence how these have been progressed towards achievement. 


STANDARD 5 – Training on safeguarding & promoting the welfare of children for all staff working with or, depending on the agency’s primary functions, in contact with children & families

Agencies must consider single and multi agency training undertaken: You may have discussed training elsewhere, this can be cross referenced. 

A database for recording attendance at training can be in a number of formats including excel spreadsheet / word / electronic

STANDARD 6 – Safer recruitment procedures including vetting procedures and those for managing allegations are in place

How do you promote the role of the LADO within your agency (intranet / internet / websites / Team Meetings etc)? What evidence do you have to demonstrate that processes are embedded within your organisation and referrals made whenever an allegation is made.


Evidence could include referrals made to the Independent Safeguarding Authority (ISA) that they have been fully completed, not stopped due to staff resignation / checks made including DBS and professional registration.

STANDARD 7 - Effective inter-agency working to safeguard & promote the welfare of children

How do you utilise data and provide examples.  For example provide an example of how you have acted on your data to improve early intervention provision.  


Where applicable evidence how your organisation has used interagency protocols.


Show how you have worked effectively with LSCB partners to successfully deliver Care plans and appropriately support any s47 investigation.


Evidence to include where agencies are sharing intelligence to ensure early help is sought where necessary. Agencies need to have a clear understanding of what's available for children and young people who might require help, but don't meet the threshold for children's social care. 


Evidence to include how you monitor agency attendance at child protection conferences and core groups and ensure effective contribution to child in need and looked after children planning


Further examples could include attendance at multi agency meetings/ evidence of how non attendance at key meeting is addressed within your agency/ Agency progression of child in need plans / team around the child plans etc / dispute escalation procedures in place for resolving disagreement internally and externally on case issues

STANDARD 8 – Effective information sharing

If information sharing arrangements are effective it will include secure transfer of information such as secure email, password protection etc.  


Effective and appropriate information sharing could be identified through increased cases of early identification of need. 


SECTION 11 Audit


Questionnaire for front line staff


This year we are introducing the below questionnaire. We suggest that you use it with a small number of staff letting the OSCB know how many and what percentage that constitutes.  Could you provide a summary of the findings from your agency rather than the individual responses.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

As part of our safeguarding self-assessment tool we are asking a sample of front line staff to complete this short questionnaire which will help us assess the effectiveness of our strategic arrangements for safeguarding children.


		Topic

		Item

		Comment / evidence






		7. Training

		When did you last have Safeguarding Children Training and how have you developed your practice to incorporate your revised or new safeguarding knowledge? 

		



		8. Knowledge

		Three part question:


What would you do if you had a safeguarding concern about a child?

What procedures would you use and where would you find them?

		



		9. Action

		How would you respond to a safeguarding allegation made against another member of staff?

		



		10. Action

		Three part question:


When did you last look at the online procedures, what for and was it useful?

		



		11. Support

		Do you know the name of your organisation’s lead officer for safeguarding? 


Have you their contact details? 

		



		12. Documentation

		Two part question:


What documentation would you use to support a safeguarding referral?


What tools might you use? 

		



		Post title of interviewee:  

		



		Post title of interviewer:  

		



		Any agreed actions:




		(what / when / who)



		Date signed off:
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